
Bryant City Council

Boswell Municipal Complex - City Hall Court Room

210 SW 3rd Street

YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/c/bryantarkansas

Date: July 29, 2025 - Time: 6:30 PM

Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order

Approval of Minutes

1. June 24, 2025 Regular Meeting - Unapproved minutes
• Unapproved Council Meeting Minutes June 24.2025.pdf

Presentations and Announcements

2. Animal Control Grants and Updates - Presented by Tricia Power, Animal Control Director

3. Municipal Funding Committee Update

Public Comments

Old Business

New Business

Finance

4. Finance Report - Month ending June 30, 2025

Approval and acceptance of the finance report for the month ending June 30, 2025.

• Financial Report for period ending June 30.2025.pdf

5. Resolution 2025-28 - A resolution providing for the adoption of an amended budget for the City of Bryant

for the twelve month period beginning January 1, 2025 and ending December 31, 2025.

Desires to amend said Budget for Fiscal Year 2025.

• Resolution 2025-28 Budget Adjustment.pdf

6. City of Bryant Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for 2024
• COB ACFR 2024.pdf

https://www.youtube.com/c/bryantarkansas
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_480/unapproved_council_meeting_minutes_june_24-2025.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_480/financial_report_for_period_ending_june_30-2025.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_480/resolution_2025-28_budget_adjustment.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_480/cob_acfr_2024.pdf


City Attorney

7. Resolution 2025-29 - A resolution to recognize the Arkansas 250 Commission as it begins its work to

celebrate Arkansas's rich two-hundred-fifty-year history from the signing of the Declaration of Independence

on July 4, 1776, through July 4, 2026.

To plan, organize, and coordinate Arkansas's celebration activities and events leading up to and on July 4, 2026.

• Resolution 2025-29.pdf

Human Resources

8. Ordinance 2025-5 - An ordinance to amend ordinance no. 2011-27 to provide that the salaries of elected

officials shall be based upon the most recently adopted salary study rather than a JESAP study ; and for other

purposes

Amending of Ordinance No. 2011-27 to allow the salaries of elected officials to be determined based on the most recently

adopted salary study.

• Ordinance 2025-5.pdf

9. Resolution 2025-30 - A resolution regarding an updated compensation policy handbook for the City of

Bryant.

Desires to adopt the updated Compensation Policy Handbook.

• Resolution 2025-30.pdf

Parks and Recreation

10. Resolution 2025-31 - A resolution of the City Council of Bryant, Arkansas, accepting the donation of

property from Joyce Boswell to be utilized by the Bryant Parks Department and designated as

Joyce Boswell's desire to donate certain real property to the City of Bryant for public use and benefit.

• Resolution 2025-31 Land Dedication.pdf

Planning & Development

11. Ordinance 2025-6 - An Ordinance to Establish and Lay Off Bryant Municipal Property Owners

Multipurpose Improvement District No. 137 (Midland Road Estates Subdivision), and Declaring an

Emergency.

Public Hearing on Petition and Ordinance to Establish and Lay Off Bryant Municpal Owners Multipurpose Improvement

District No. 137 and Declaring an Emergency

• Ordinance 2025-6 Improvement District.pdf

Council Comments

Mayor Comments

Adjournments

https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_480/resolution_2025-29.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_480/ordinance_2025-5.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_480/resolution_2025-30.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_480/resolution_2025-31_land_dedication.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_480/ordinance_2025-6_improvement_district.pdf


  Bryant City Council Minutes   June 24, 2025     1 | P a g e  

 

Bryant City Council Meeting Minutes 
June 24, 2025 -  6:30 PM 

Boswell Municipal Complex - City Hall Court Room    210 SW 3rd Street   Bryant, Arkansas 
YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/c/bryantarkansas 

 

UNAPPROVED MINUTES 

 
A prayer was led by Council Member Roedel and the Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Treat. 
 
Call to Order- Mayor Treat at 6:31 pm. 

Roll Call –  

Present: Butch Higginbotham, Jon Martin, Lisa Meyer, Jack Moseley, Jordan O’Roark, Wade 
Permenter and Rob Roedel. 
Absent: Walter Burgess 
Quorum Present.   
City Attorney Ashley Clancy and City Clerk Mark Smith were also present.   
 
Approval of Minutes   
 

1. Approval of May 27, 2025 Council Meeting Minutes   [YT 4:50] 
Motion to approve - Council Member Meyer, Second by Council Member Permenter.   
Voice Vote.  Motion Passed.  

 
Presentations and Announcements  
 

2. State of the Water Industry     [YT 5:30] 
Tim Fournier, Public Works Director gave a Water Industry Overview that included a power 
point presentation. 
 

3. Appointment of Community Engagement Committee Member, Ward 2 - Carolyn Geffken 
Motion to approve - Council Member Meyer, Second by Council Member O’Roark.       [YT 24:55] 
Voice Vote.  Motion Passed. 
 
Council Member Roedel made a Motion to add a Resolution to the Agenda as Item 16,   [YT 25:30] 
Second by Council Member Meyer. 
Voice Vote.  Motion Passed.  
 

No Public Comments 

 
New Business  

 

Finance – Presented by Joy Black, Director 

4. Finance Report - Month ending May 31, 2025      [YT 27:10] 
Approval and acceptance of the finance report for the month ending May 31, 2025. 
Director Black pointed out Sales Tax is still tracking close to forecast. 

https://www.youtube.com/c/bryantarkansas


  Bryant City Council Minutes   June 24, 2025     2 | P a g e  

 

Motion to approve - Council Member Martin, Second by Council Member Permenter. 
Voice Vote.  Motion Passed. 
 

5. Annual Comprehensive Financial Report      [YT 29:30] 
Approval and acceptance of the DRAFT of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. 
Motion to approve - Council Member Roedel, Second by Council Member O’Roark.   
Voice Vote.  Motion Passed. 
 

Council  

 

6. Planning Discussion – Presented by Ted Taylor, Director     [YT 32:00] 
Item requested by Council Member Higginbotham to discuss reviewing permits, notifications, 
solar arrays, etc. 
A discussion was held regarding plans for a solar array for the Bryant School District and what 
changes in City code might be needed going forward.  Conditional Use Permits were also 
discussed and any changes needed.  Using the City’s facebook page and webpage for 
notification was also discussed.  The Planning Department is working on the changes and will 
bring those changes back to Council. 
 

 
Information Technology – Presented by Philip Plouch – IT Support Technician 

 
7. Update on Network Switches      [YT 54:50] 

The Council was updated on the network switch replacement which is progressing. 
 
 

Planning and Development – Presented by Ted Taylor, Director 
 

8. Ordinance 2025-4 - An Ordinance Amending the Comprehensive Zoning      [YT 56:45] 
Ordinance of the City of Bryant to Rezone Certain Property from R-E to C-2.  
R-E to C-2 rezoning for property adjacent to Springhill Storage which is located off of Springhill 
Rd and Hwy 5. The rezoning Application has been approved by Planning Commission and is 
recommended to City Council for Approval. 
Motion to suspend the rules and read first, second and third reading by title only - Council 
Member Higginbotham, Second by Council Member Martin. 
Voice Vote.  Motion passed. 
Ordinance read by the Mayor. 
Motion to adopt by Council Member O’Roark, second by Council Member Meyer. 
Roll Call Vote.  YES: Higginbotham, Martin, Meyer, Moseley, O’Roark, Permenter, Roedel. 
Motion Passed 7-0. 
Motion to add an Emergency Clause by Council Member Roedel, Second - Council Member 
Higginbotham. 
Voice Vote.  Motion passed. 
Motion to approve Emergency Clause - Council Member Roedel, Second - Council Member 
O’Roark. 
Roll Call Vote.  YES: Higginbotham, Martin, Meyer, Moseley, O’Roark, Permenter, Roedel. 
Motion Passed 7-0.   
 



  Bryant City Council Minutes   June 24, 2025     3 | P a g e  

 

9. Sidewalk Waiver - Elm Estates Subdivision - 203 SW 4th Street    [YT 1:01:10]  
A waiver is requested by GarNat Engineering for the requirement to build sidewalks along the 
street frontage for this subdivision development.  
Director Taylor explained that the installation of sidewalks in this area will hamper drainage. 
There are sidewalks on the other side of the street.  The Planning Commission recommends 
the waiver. 
Motion to approve - Council Member Roedel, Second by Council Member Meyer. 
Voice Vote.  Motion Passed. 
 
 

10. Resolution 2025-22 - A resolution expressing the willingness of the City of     [YT 1:02:05] 
Bryant to apply for and participate in the Arkansas Community Assistance grant 
program. 
Grant Coordinator Rebecca Kidder explained that this grant would be used for new field lights 
at the Alcoa Park for lacrosse and softball fields.  It is a $530,000 project and with 80/20 grant, 
Bryant’s portion would be $106,000. 
Motion to approve - Council Member Meyer, Second by Council Member Moseley. 
Voice Vote.  Motion Passed. 
 
 

11. Resolution 2025-23 - A resolution expressing the willingness of the City of     [YT 1:03:15] 
Bryant to apply for and participate in the Arkansas Community Assistance grant 
program.  
This grant would be used for exterior lights at Bishop Park.  Bryant’s match of the 80/20 grant 
would cost $44,800. 
Motion to approve - Council Member Martin, Second by Council Member Moseley. 
Voice Vote.  Motion Passed. 
 
 

12. Resolution 2025-24 - A resolution expressing the willingness of the City of     [YT 1:04:15] 
Bryant to utilize federal-aid transportation program funds.  
This grant would be utilized for the Bryant Parkway Trail Connector from Raymar Road, across 
Interstate 30 to Highway 5.  It is a $2.2 million project and with the 80/20 match- Bryant’s 
match would be $440,000. 
Motion to approve - Council Member Roedel, Second by Council Member Meyer. 
Voice Vote.  Motion Passed. 
 
 

13. Resolution 2025-25 - A resolution expressing the willingness of the City of     [YT 1:05:15] 
Bryant to utilize federal-aid transportation program funds.  
The Hildale-Midland Connector Trail would benefit from this 80/20 grant from this Surface 
Transportation Block Grant and Carbon Reduction Program which would provide $44,800 in 
funding. 
Motion to approve - Council Member O’Roark, Second by Council Member Higginbotham. 
Voice Vote.  Motion Passed. 
 
 
 
 

 



  Bryant City Council Minutes   June 24, 2025     4 | P a g e  

 

14. Resolution 2025-26 - A resolution expressing the willingness of the City of     [YT 1:06:00] 
Bryant to apply and participate in the Department of Justice's Cops Hiring program 
grant.  
This grant would provide $440,418 over a three year period to hire four additional police 
officers for three years. 
Motion to approve - Council Member Higginbotham, Second by Council Member Meyer. 
Voice Vote.  Motion Passed. 
 
 

15. Comprehensive Growth Plan RFQ     [YT 1:07:30] 
Director Taylor explained that Bryant last did a Comprehensive Growth Plan in 2012.  
Following a Request for Quote (RFQ) and several proposals that were received, the Planning 
Commission choose Crafton Tull for the new Comprehensive Growth Plan.  He introduced 
Dave Roberts and his team who walked the Council through their experiences and the 
importance of community engagement. 
Motion to approve the city to enter contract negations with Crafton Tull - Council Member 
Meyer, Second by Council Member O’Roark. 
Voice Vote.  Motion Passed. 
 
 

16. Resolution 2025-27- A resolution authorizing the Mayor of the City of Bryant,     [YT 1:25:40] 
Arkansas to purchase real property located at 411 Roya Lane, Bryant, Arkansas for use 
by the Training Division of the Bryant Police Department, and for other purposes. 
This request was approved in the May, 2025 Council Meeting but the bank requested a 
separate Resolution. 
Motion to approve - Council Member Martin, Second by Council Member Permenter. 
Voice Vote.  Motion Passed. 
 

 
Council Comments 

Council Meyer reported that the Funding Committee is working hard and making progress. 
Council Member O’Roark appreciates the Bryant Police keeping the community safe. 
    

Adjournment 
Motion to Adjourn- Council Member Martin, Second by Council Member Meyer at 7:59 pm. 
 















































































































































































Section 

1.

•         General Fund 71,470.00
•         Street Fund 4,000.00
•         Bond Fund 72,500.00
•        Utility Revenue Fund 500 Water 72,200.00
•         Utility Fund  WW 12,200.00

Section 

2.

PASSED AND APPROVED this 29th  day of , July 2025.

APPROVED:

_________________________ ATTEST:

Chris Treat, Mayor

___________________

Mark Smith, City Clerk

The amended city budget for the calendar year 2025 is hereby amended and adopted to read as attached.

RESOLUTION NO. 2025 _____

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ADOPTION OF AN AMENDED BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF BRYANT 

FOR THE TWELVE MONTH PERIOD BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2025 AND ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2025

WHEREAS, the City of Bryant, Arkansas adopted a budget for The City of Bryant on December 17, 2024, recorded as Resolution 

2024-54, and

WHEREAS, the City of Bryant, Arkansas, desires to amend said Budget for Fiscal Year 2025 as attached.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF BRYANT, ARKANSAS THAT:

This resolution (with attachment) shall be known as the amended budget resolution for the City of Bryant, 

Arkansas, for the twelve (12) month period beginning January 1, 2025 and ending December 31, 2025.

Page 1 of 2

Resolution 2025 -____ Adopting an Amended City Budget for 2025 - July 2025



Account Amount Description

001-0100-5000 -2,800.00 Using Admin vacanies to cover overages

001-0100-5505 3,000.00 Camera/Recorder

001-0100-5600 4,500.00 AR Conversion Correction

001-0100-5608 2,700.00 Open Gov

001-0110-5060 -9,500.00 Reclassing IT Training for Other items

001-0120-5608 2,100.00 Iworqs for Code

001-0410-5105 12,306.00 Mills plumbing repairs and hot water heater

001-0430-5816 59,164.00 HVAC Split System and Therapy Pool heater at Bishop + covered by Amend 78 savings

001-0500-4600 -160.00 reclass of helmet money

001-0500-4900 -6,200.00 Sale of a Capital Asset for Fire

001-0500-5102 6,200.00 Using sale money to increase Repairs and Maint line for Fire buildings

001-0500-5055 160.00 reclass of helmet money

001-0600-5040 -13,000.00 Using PD Vacanies to cover overages

001-0600-5604 5,000.00 IT overage

001-0600-5608 8,000.00 Motorola, Target Solutions, Leads on line and Datapilot all came in higher than budget

080-0800-5571 -50,000.00 Reclass Street Eng to Cap Infr for Stillman Projects

080-0800-5608 4,000.00 Pinnacle 3 month contract for IT 

080-0800-5816 50,000.00 Reclass Street Eng to Cap Infr for Stillman Projects

182-0800-5722 70,000.00 Street Bond Pmt

182-0880-5724 2,500.00 Street Bond Fees

500-0900-5360 60,000.00 Cost of Water increase 

500-0900-5608 12,200.00 Pinnacle 3 month contract for IT 

510-0950-5608 12,200.00 Pinnacle 3 month contract for IT 

Page 2 of 2 

Resolution 2025 - _____Adopting an Amended City Budget for 2025 - July  2025





Bull’s Eye

Financials

Internal Control

Grants

Third Party Review

Materiality

Comparisons across USA

Goals

Not just checking the box

Consistent Improvement

Growth

Learning















RESOLUTION NO. 2025 - ________ 

 

A RESOLUTION TO RECOGNIZE THE ARKANSAS 250 COMMISSION AS IT 

BEGINS ITS WORK TO CELEBRATE ARKANSAS’S RICH TWO-HUNDRED-FIFTY-

YEAR HISTORY FROM THE SIGNING OF THE DECLARATION OF 

INDEPENDENCE ON JULY 4, 1776, THROUGH JULY 4, 2026. 

 

WHEREAS: On July 4, 2026, the United States of America will celebrate the two hundred 

fiftieth anniversary of the signing of the Declaration of Independence; and 

WHEREAS: The United States Congress established the United States Semiquincentennial 

Commission, which is working with America250.org, Inc., to plan and orchestrate this great 

occasion, and the United States Congress is encouraging states to join and participate in this 

celebration of the United States of America; and 

WHEREAS: Governor Sarah Huckabee Sanders created the Arkansas 250 Commission to Plan, 

organize, and coordinate Arkansas’s celebration activities and events leading up to and on July 4, 

2026; and 

WHEREAS: Arkansas and the territory that preceded it have a rich two-hundred-fifty-year 

history to commemorate; and 

WHEREAS: In 1776, Arkansas was part of the Louisiana Territory and home to Native 

Americans and early Europea settlers; and 

WHEREAS: in 1783, a Revolutionary War battle was fought at Arkansas Post; and 

WHEREAS: in 1803, the land that would become Arkansas officially became part of the United 

State of America via the acquisition known as the Louisiana Purchase; and 

WHEREAS: Arkansas officially became a territory of the United States of America in 1819 and 

achieved statehood in 1836; and 

WHEREAS: In the one hundred eighty-nine (189) years since achieving statehood, Arkansas 

has played a part in the history of our great nation and is rich with stories to tell, legends to 

recognize, and achievements to celebrate; and 

WHEREAS: This semiquincentennial event is a once-in-a-generation opportunity to engage 

children, students, and adults in educational activities, civic engagement, and public service 

opportunities. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BRYANT, ARKANSAS THAT: 

Section 1.  The City Council of the City of Bryant, Arkansas hereby recognizes, 

supports, and encourages the efforts of the Arkansas 250 Commission as it begins its 



work to celebrate Arkansas’s rich two-hundred-fifty-year history from the signing 

of the Declaration of Independence on July 4, 1776, through July 4, 2026. 

Section 2.  The City Council of the City of Bryant, Arkansas does hereby encourage 

all educational institutions, civic organizations, libraries, museums, and all of 

Arkansas to join this celebration of our state’s magnificent history and 

achievements in a series of events and activities that will culminate on Jule 4, 2026. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this __________day of July, 2025. 

      APPROVED: 

 

      ________________________________ 

      Chris Treat, Mayor 

ATTEST:      

 

________________________________  

Mark Smith, City Clerk   

 

































































RESOLUTION NO. ____ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF BRYANT, ARKANSAS, ACCEPTING THE 

DONATION OF PROPERTY FROM JOYCE BOSWELL TO BE UTILIZED BY THE BRYANT 

PARKS DEPARTMENT AND DESIGNATED AS “TED BOSWELL MEMORIAL PARK”; AND 

FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

WHEREAS, Joyce Boswell, a resident of Saline County, Arkansas, has expressed her desire to donate 

certain real property to the City of Bryant, Arkansas, for public use and benefit; and 

WHEREAS, the property to be donated consists of approximately 0.4 acres, located at the northeast 

corner of Mills Park Road and Reynolds Road, in Bryant, Saline County, Arkansas; and 

WHEREAS, the donation is being made specifically to the City of Bryant Parks Department for use as a 

public park and green space; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Bryant wishes to honor the donation and the legacy of the late Ted Boswell by 

naming the donated property the Ted Boswell Memorial Park; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that acceptance of this property is in the best interest of the City and 

its residents and expresses sincere gratitude to Joyce Boswell for her generous contribution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

BRYANT, ARKANSAS: 

1. That the City of Bryant hereby accepts the donation of approximately 0.4 acres of real property located 

at the northeast corner of Mills Park Road and Reynolds Road from Joyce Boswell. 

2. That the property shall be placed under the care and management of the Bryant Parks Department and 

shall be utilized as a public park. 

3. That the property shall be officially named and designated as Ted Boswell Memorial Park in honor of 

the late Ted Boswell. 

4. That the Mayor and any necessary City officials are hereby authorized to execute any documents 

necessary to complete the transfer and record the property with the appropriate county officials. 

5. That the City expresses its deep appreciation to Joyce Boswell for her generosity and commitment to the 

Bryant community. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this ___ day of _______________, 2025. 

APPROVED: 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________   _____________________________ 

City Clerk Mark Smith     Mayor Chris Treat 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2025-___ 

NO. CC - 2025 - 4 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO ESTABLISH AND LAY OFF BRYANT MUNICIPAL PROPERTY 

OWNERS’ MULTIPURPOSE IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 137 (MIDLAND ROAD 

ESTATES SUBDIVISION), AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY 

 

WHEREAS, a Petition to form Bryant Municipal Property Owners' Multipurpose Improvement 

District No. 137 (Midland Road Estates Subdivision) has been filed with the Bryant City Clerk; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Clerk has presented the petition to the Mayor; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Mayor has set July 29th, at 6:30 p.m. as the date and time for a hearing before the 

Bryant City Council for consideration of the petition; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Bryant City Council has determined from an abstractor's certificate of property 

ownership that those signing the petition constitute all the owners of the real property to be located 

in said district; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Arkansas Municipal Property Owners' Improvement District Law provides that if 

the governing body determines that all the owners of the real property to be located in the district 

have petitioned for the improvements, it shall then be its duty by ordinance to establish and lay off 

the district as defined in the petition and to appoint the commissioners named in the petition. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF BRYANT, SALINE 

COUNTY, ARKANSAS THAT: 

 

Section 1. That the real property described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made a part hereof 

is hereby established and laid off as Bryant Municipal Property Owners' Multipurpose 

Improvement District No. 137 (Midland Road Estates Subdivision) for the purpose of constructing 

waterworks, sewers, and other utilities within the lands therein described, and grading, draining, 

paving, curbing, and laying streets and sidewalks, together with facilities related to any of the 

foregoing, and for all other purposes permitted by law.  

 

Section 2. The following three individuals are hereby appointed as commissioners of said 

improvement district: Callie Havens, Paula Alderman, and Danielle Polk. 

 

Section 3. The name of improvement district shall be Bryant Municipal Property Owners' 

Multipurpose Improvement District No. 137 (Midland Road Estates Subdivision). 



 

Section 4. The Bryant City Council hereby determines that there is a need for additional 

infrastructure within the City and hereby determines that the passage of this ordinance will 

facilitate construction of additional infrastructure within the City. Therefore, an emergency is 

hereby declared to exist, and this ordinance being necessary for the public health, safety and 

welfare shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this ______ day of ________________, 2025. 

 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Mayor, Chris Treat 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

City Clerk, Mark Smith 

 

 




















	Invocation
	Pledge of Allegiance
	Call to Order
	Approval of Minutes
	Presentations and Announcements
	Public Comments
	Old Business
	New Business
	Finance
	City Attorney
	Human Resources
	Parks and Recreation
	Planning & Development

	Council Comments
	Mayor Comments
	Adjournments
	COB ACFR
	This report includes the Auditor’s Opinions.
	5 Sections
	MD&A, Management Discussion and Analysis
	Financial Statements for 2024
	Statistical Section
	Compliance Section
	Challenge 
	image18-07-2025-113858
	Resolution accepting donated land by Joyce Boswell (2)
	Ordinance - Improvemnt District Midland Road Estates Subdivision
	Improvment District 137 Petition (Midland Road Estates Subdivision)

